
 City of Sodaville 
 Regular Session Agenda 

 November 16, 2023 
 7:00 PM – City Hall 

 Teleconference Number: 253 215 8782 * Meeting ID: 881 5032 9632 * Passcode: 992250 

 1.  Call to Order 
 2.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 3.  Roll Call 
 4.  Visitors 
 5.  Bills 
 6.  Minutes 

 ●  October 11, 2023 
 ●  October 19, 2023 

 7.  Public Comment 
 This  is  the  time  to  speak  to  the  City  Council  or  Mayor  on  any  subject  including  what  is 
 listed  on this Agenda except for Public Hearings.  Time limit is 3 minutes per person. 

 8.  City Recorder’s Report 
 ●  City Finances 
 ●  City Update 

 9.  Public Works Report 
 ●  Water Update 

 10.  New Business: 
 a.  Resolution 23-16 LGIP Transfer 

 11.  Old Business 
 A.  Ordinance 23-07 Contracting and Purchasing 

 12.  Council Reports 
 13.  Public Comment 

 This  is  the  time  to  speak  to  the  City  Council  or  Mayor  on  any  subject  other  than  what  is 
 listed  on this Agenda except for Public Hearings.  Time limit is 3 minutes per person. 

 14.  Adjourn 

 PUBLIC  COMMENT  There  are  two  times  at  every  regular  City  Council  meeting  when  the  public  has  an 
 opportunity  to  address  the  City  Council.  The  first  time  is  reserved  for  questions  or  statements  regarding  items 
 appearing  on  the  agenda,  except  public  hearings  and  the  merits  of  land  use  issues.  The  second  time  is  at  the  end  of 
 the  agenda.  At  this  time,  you  can  address  the  City  Council  on  any  matter  of  public  concern,  other  than  an  agenda 
 item.  The  Mayor  will  announce  the  time  for  public  comment,  and  invite  persons  to  address  the  City  Council.  Each 
 person  has  three  minutes  to  address  the  City  Council.  PUBLIC  COMMENT  is  not  accepted  during  the  meeting 
 other  than  at  those  times.  The  Council  reserves  the  right  to  enter  into  Executive  Session  as  needed  to  conduct  City 
 business  in  accordance  with  Oregon  Public  Meeting  Law  as  clarified  in  the  Oregon  Attorney  General’s  Public 
 Records and Meetings Manual or advised by counsel. 
 Individuals  needing  special  accommodations  such  as  sign  language,  foreign  language  interpreters  or  equipment  for 
 the  hearing  impaired  must  request  such  services  at  least  48  hours  prior  to  the  City  Council  meeting  by  calling 
 541-258-8882. 

 “  The City of Sodaville is an equal opportunity provider  and employer.” 



 8. City Recorder Update 
 City Finances 

 The finance reports are attached to the Council Packet. Only one expense was paid via 
 credit card this month: a roll of stamps. 

 The water crisis has severely damaged the city’s finances. This month will see even the 
 amended water acquisition budget maxed out, forcing a much larger supplemental change. My 
 budget philosophy involves writing a budget that allows money to be spent without rewriting the 
 budget, but operating with fiscal restraint. That is why the 2022-2023 fiscal year budget was 
 projected to end with $65,000 cash on hand on paper, but actually ended with $206,000 in the 
 bank. The same guiding philosophy is in place this year, but the City's finances are lopsided as a 
 result of the outsized water acquisition expenses. At least $40,000 more is expected for water 
 acquisition this fiscal year, and adding that without budget cuts will leave only $20k on hand at 
 the end of the year on paper. The City still plans to spend ARPA funds on street repairs this fiscal 
 year. Fiscal restraint will continue to be exercised, which will allow the City to end with more 
 than $20,000 cash on hand at the end of the fiscal year, but a supplemental budget needs to be 
 adopted to avoid that cataclysm. At the time this report is written, the City only has 5 invoices to 
 pay in addition to staff payroll, showcasing that fiscal restraint. This may include across the 
 board cuts to increase the Water Enterprise Program in the General Fund. The Council should 
 expect to have more special meetings to talk about the fiscal impact of the water crisis, including 
 a work session on costs and a special meeting on a supplemental budget prior to the December 
 City Council meeting so that the City can meet its contractual obligations to pay for water 
 hauling. 

 City Updates 
 City updates are minimal. Staff have been focused on mitigating the water crisis and its 

 negative fiscal impacts. We are working on Updates to the Water Management Conservation Plan 
 and working on a grant agreement with the State for the $307k legislative matching grant being 
 distributed through the Oregon Water Resources Department. The latter document will need to 
 be amended in the future after the City gets an engineering plan. There is a potential problem 
 with the way the appropriation was worded that may require a technical fix from the Legislative 
 Assembly during the 2024 legislative session. I am working with OWRD and the office of Rep. 
 Jami Cate to understand our options. 

 I attended a League of Oregon Cities meeting on November 8. 
 I would like to take the week of Thanksgiving off in lieu of a Christmas vacation. 



 9. Public Works Update 
 Water 
 The city's wells produced  250107  gallons. 
 The city trucked in  240631  gallons. 
 Reservoir -  25000  gallons 
 The city sold  494345  gallons 
 Difference of  21393  gallons.  3.58% Loss 

 Streets 
 Nothing to report. 

 Parks 
 Nothing to report. 

 Misc. 



 10.a Resolution 23-16 LGIP Transfer 
 Staff Summary 

 This month staff once again recommend transferring $20,000 from the LGIP account to 
 the operating account. As with the last two transfers, the amount includes money held in reserve 
 in addition to new funds received. It is currently expected that these large transfers will occur on 
 two more occasions, December and January. Over the next two months, the percentage of new 
 funds received will grow as the City receives property taxes. February-June of the next fiscal 
 year is expected to be a recharge period where regular revenue will cover operating expenses, 
 and the LGIP account can be refilled. Calculations based on previous years will be prepared to 
 show how the City’s finances can be managed over the remainder of next year, which can be 
 examined at a future work session or supplemental budget committee hearing. 

 This resolution will also authorize the transfer of $496.00 from the operating account to 
 the LGIP account to maintain water equipment reserves 

 Suggested Motion:  I move to adopt Resolution 23-16. 

 11.A. Ordinance 23-07 Contracting and Purchasing 
 Staff Summary 

 State law requires all local governments to either adopt the Attorney General’s model 
 rules for procurement, or adopt their own in line with state law. Sodaville’s procurement 
 ordinance, 94-01, is almost 30 years old and accordingly three decades out of alignment with 
 state law. Outdated procurement policies result in legal liability when the City procures goods 
 and services. Business Oregon staff note that the City’s procurement policies will need to be up 
 to date and in line with state law in order to properly spend IFA loan money for water system 
 expansion. The proposed Contracting and Purchasing policy is a model ordinance provided by 
 the League of Oregon Cities. Feedback was requested from Councilors prior to adoption, and 
 only one Councilor provided comments. The Ordinance can be amended in the future if the 
 Council wishes to make further changes, but the City needs to adopt a procurement Ordinance in 
 line with state law before any money can be spent on adding a new well to the City’s water 
 system. 

 Note: This was introduced as Ordinance 23-07 in August the first of three Ordinances 
 reviewed at that meeting. That is why this Ordinance number appears out of sequence with the 
 most recently adopted Ordinance, 23-10. 

 Suggested Motion:  I  move to adopt Ordinance 23-07. 



 City of Sodaville 
 Special Session Minutes 

 October 11, 2023 
 7:00 PM – City Hall 

 1.  Call to Order 
 Mayor Brian Lewis called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. 

 2.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 Mayor Lewis led the pledge of allegiance. 

 3.  Roll Call 
 Councilors: Mayor Brian Lewis, Councilor Adina Olivare, Councilor Joe Parsons. 
 Staff: City Administrator/Recorder Alex McHaddad, Public Works Director J D Burns. 

 4.  Visitors 
 Anthony Bentley, May Northern. 

 5.  New Business: 
 a.  Ordinance 23-10 Addressing Water Restrictions and Declaring an Emergency 

 Councilor  Olivares  Adina  moved  to  read  the  Ordinance  by  title  only,  second  by  Councilor 
 Parsons. 
 Yes: Mayor Brian Lewis, Councilor Adina Olivare, Councilor Joe Parsons. 
 No: N/A. 
 Abstain: N/A. 
 Motion passes. 

 City Administrator/Recorder Alex McHaddad read the Ordinance by title. 

 Councilor Parsons moved to adopt Ordinance 23-10, then withdrew his motion. 

 Councilor Parsons moved to adopt Ordinance 23-10, second by Councilor Olivares. 
 Yes: Mayor Brian Lewis, Councilor Adina Olivare, Councilor Joe Parsons. 
 No: N/A. 
 Abstain: N/A. 
 Motion passes. 

 6.  Adjourn 
 Councilor Parson moved to adjourn, second by Councilor Olivares. 
 Yes: Mayor Brian Lewis, Councilor Adina Olivare, Councilor Joe Parsons. 
 No: N/A. 
 Abstain: N/A. 
 Motion passes. 



 City of Sodaville 
 Regular Session & Supplemental Budget Hearing Agenda 

 October 19, 2023 
 7:00 PM – City Hall 

 1.  Call to Order 
 Mayor Brian Lewis called the meeting to order at 7:00PM 

 2.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 Mayor Lewis led the pledge of allegiance. 

 3.  Roll Call 
 Councilors:  Mayor  Brian  Lewis,  Council  President  Roger  Perry,  Councilor  Jeff  Hensley, 
 Councilor Adina Olivares, Councilor Joe Parsons. 
 Staff: City Administrator/Recorder Alex McHaddad, Public Works Director J D Burns. 

 4.  Visitors 
 (Community  Services  Consortium),  Dale  Rouse,  Councilor  Emeritus  Ray  Jackman, 
 Budget Committee Member Timmy Bartley. 

 5.  Bills 
 Council President Perry moved to pay outstanding bills, second by Councilor Hensley. 
 Yes:  Mayor  Brian  Lewis,  Council  President  Roger  Perry,  Councilor  Jeff  Hensley, 
 Councilor Adina Olivares, Councilor Joe Parsons. 
 No: N/A. 
 Abstain: N/A. 
 Motion passes. 

 6.  Minutes 
 ●  September 14, 2023 Minutes 

 Council  President  Perry  moved  to  accept  the  minutes,  second  by  Councilor 
 Parsons. 
 Yes:  Mayor  Brian  Lewis,  Council  President  Roger  Perry,  Councilor  Jeff  Hensley, 
 Councilor Adina Olivares, Councilor Joe Parsons. 
 No: N/A. 
 Abstain: N/A. 
 Motion passes. 

 7.  Public Comment 
 This  is  the  time  to  speak  to  the  City  Council  or  Mayor  on  any  subject  including  what  is 
 listed  on this Agenda except for Public Hearings. Time limit is 3 minutes per person. 
 Public comment was received from Dale Rouse. 



 Council  President  Perry  moved  to  suspend  the  agenda  and  open  Item  10.a.,  second  by 
 Councilor Hensley. 
 Yes:  Mayor  Brian  Lewis,  Council  President  Roger  Perry,  Councilor  Jeff  Hensley, 
 Councilor Adina Olivares, Councilor Joe Parsons. 
 No: N/A. 
 Abstain: N/A. 
 Motion passes. 

 8.  City Recorder’s Report 
 ●  City Finances 
 ●  City Update 

 9.  Public Works Report 
 ●  Water Update 

 10.  New Business: 
 a.  Community Services Consortium Presentation 
 b.  Resolution 23-13 In Memoriam Clerk Steve Druckenmiller 

 Councilor  Olivares  moved  to  adopt  Resolution  23-13,  second  by  Council 
 President Perry. 
 Yes:  Mayor  Brian  Lewis,  Council  President  Roger  Perry,  Councilor  Jeff  Hensley, 
 Councilor Adina Olivares, Councilor Joe Parsons. 
 No: N/A. 
 Abstain: N/A. 
 Motion passes. 

 c.  Resolution 23-14 LGIP Transfer 
 Councilor  Parsons  moved  to  adopt  Resolution  23-14,  second  by  Councilor 
 Hensley. 
 Yes:  Mayor  Brian  Lewis,  Council  President  Roger  Perry,  Councilor  Jeff  Hensley, 
 Councilor Adina Olivares, Councilor Joe Parsons. 
 No: N/A. 
 Abstain: N/A. 
 Motion passes. 

 d.  Supplemental Budget Hearing 
 Mayor Lewis called the supplemental budget hearing to order at 8:37PM. 
 Mayor Lewis closed the supplemental budget hearing at 8:44. 
 Councilor  Parsons  Joe  moved  to  adopt  Resolution  23-15,  second  by  Council 
 President Perry. 
 Yes:  Mayor  Brian  Lewis,  Council  President  Roger  Perry,  Councilor  Jeff  Hensley, 
 Councilor Adina Olivares, Councilor Joe Parsons. 
 No: N/A. 
 Abstain: N/A. 
 Motion passes. 

 e.  Contract Review Board - Business Oregon Water Addendum 



 Mayor Lewis called the Contract Review Board session to order at 8:44PM. 
 Councilor  Parsons  moved  to  adopt  Amendment  Number  1  to  Agreement  S18003 
 with the Oregon Business Development Department, second by Councilor 
 Mayor Lewis adjourned the Contract Review Board session at 8:49PM. 

 11.  Old Business 

 12.  Council Reports 

 13.  Public Comment 
 This  is  the  time  to  speak  to  the  City  Council  or  Mayor  on  any  subject  other  than  what  is 
 listed  on this Agenda except for Public Hearings. Time limit is 3 minutes per person. 

 Public comment was received from Councilor Emeritus Ray Jackman. 

 14.  Adjourn 
 Jeff moves to adjourn, Joe seconds, all vote yes. 
 Councilor Hensley moved to pay outstanding bills, second by Councilor Parsons. 
 Yes:  Mayor  Brian  Lewis,  Council  President  Roger  Perry,  Councilor  Jeff  Hensley, 
 Councilor Adina Olivares, Councilor Joe Parsons. 
 No: N/A. 
 Abstain: N/A. 
 Meeting adjourned at 9:00PM. 



Resources to 10/31/23 Budgeted Remaining Received
Available Cash On Hand
Interest
Franchise Fees
Grants
Metered Water Sales
Construction Apps/Site Reviews/Permits
Zoning Apps and Permits
Refunds
Donations
Administrative Services Charges/Lien Search
Sale of maps, Publications & Photocopies
Cigarette Taxes
Liquor Taxes
State Highway Fund
State Revenue Sharing
Taxes estimated to be received
Previously Levied Taxes
Marijuana
TOTAL $406,750.00 $140,597.77 $266,152.23

$196,000.00 -$10,782.45 $206,782.45
$2,850.00 $1,065.81 $1,784.19
$20,000.00 $15,599.89 $4,400.11
$1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00

$130,000.00 $90,349.70 $39,650.30
$500.00 $405.00 $95.00
$350.00 $350.00 $0.00
$500.00 $102.46 $397.54

$5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00
$400.00 $350.00 $50.00
$100.00 $100.00 $0.00
$300.00 $205.57 $94.43

$7,300.00 $5,065.01 $2,234.99
$28,500.00 $19,086.10 $9,413.90
$4,150.00 $3,213.77 $936.23
$8,500.00 $8,500.00 $0.00
$200.00 $129.98 $70.02
1100 $856.93 $243.07



Administration to 10/31/23 Budgeted Remaining Spent

Streets to 10/31/23 Budgeted Remaining Spent

Water to 10/31/23 Budgeted Remaining Spent

Debt Service to 10/31/23 Budgeted Remaining Spent

Contingency to 10/31/23

TOTALS to 10/31/23 Budgeted Remaining Spent

Mayor $400.00 $400.00 $0.00
City Recorder $18,200.00 $12,403.52 $5,796.48
Public Works Director $4,300.00 $2,889.39 $1,410.61
Payroll Taxes $4,800.00 $3,291.51 $1,508.49
Health Benefits and PFMLI $4,100.00 $2,757.20 $1,342.80
Consultants $4,000.00 $3,553.12 $446.88
Operating Expenses $750.00 $750.00 $0.00
Supplies and Duplication $450.00 $319.96 $130.04
Communications $1,000.00 $573.50 $426.50
Utilities & Maintenance – Bldg/Grnd/Equip $2,000.00 $848.22 $1,151.78
Insurance $3,000.00 $1,242.25 $1,757.75
Community Relations $500.00 $500.00 $0.00
Planning Grant $1,000.00 $940.00 $60.00
Office Equipment $500.00 $428.10 $71.90
Park Improvements $3,500.00 $3,067.16 $432.84
City Hall Building Improvements $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00

TOTAL $51,000.00 $36,463.93 $14,536.07

City Recorder $6,000.00 $2,455.24 $3,544.76
Public Works Director $11,000.00 $8,454.41 $2,545.59
Payroll Taxes $8,000.00 $6,529.32 $1,470.68
Health Benefits $4,500.00 $4,298.82 $201.18
Consultants $2,000.00 $476.80 $1,523.20
Operating Expenses – Street Lights $5,500.00 $5,353.00 $147.00
Administrative Supplies $500.00 $286.78 $213.22
Communication $500.00 $297.23 $202.77
Construction Supplies $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00
Contract Services - Maintenance & Repair $2,500.00 $1,294.69 $1,205.31
Liability Insurance $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00
Operating Expenses - Rock, Grading $61,000.00 $61,000.00 $0.00
Equipment Expenses $800.00 $800.00 $0.00
TOTAL $106,300.00 $95,246.29 $11,053.71

City Recorder $6,000.00 $4,067.85 $1,932.15
Public Works Director $17,800.00 $11,840.55 $5,959.45
Payroll Taxes $16,500.00 $11,126.03 $5,373.97
Health Benefits $11,000.00 $7,419.20 $3,580.80
Electricity $4,500.00 $2,914.52 $1,585.48
Monthly Water Quality Monitoring $500.00 -$815.98 $1,315.98
Non-Routine Water Quality Monitoring $3,000.00 $2,960.00 $40.00
Operating Supplies $2,000.00 $1,345.24 $654.76
Equipment and Facilities Repair & Maintenance $12,500.00 $10,397.73 $2,102.27
Operating Expenses – Equipment Rental $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $0.00
Contract Services – Maintenance & Repair $15,000.00 $9,550.00 $5,450.00
Water Acquisition $60,000.00 $16,284.40 $43,715.60
Consultants $10,000.00 $9,040.56 $959.44
Dues, Mileage, Training $10,000.00 $5,846.36 $4,153.64
Administrative Supplies & Duplication $1,000.00 $711.67 $288.33
Communication $3,000.00 $1,671.47 $1,328.53
State Review, Conditional Use $500.00 $500.00 $0.00
Insurance $3,500.00 $1,440.92 $2,059.08

TOTAL $178,300.00 $97,800.52 $80,499.48

Vehicle $2,800.00 $2,110.96 $689.04

TOTAL $2,800.00 $2,110.96 $689.04

$6,350.00 $6,350.00 $0.00

TOTALS $287,400.00 $180,621.70 $106,778.30



Oct 31, 23

Beginning Balance 62,756.35
Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 25 items -31,047.11
Deposits and Credits - 39 items 30,737.84

Total Cleared Transactions -309.27

Cleared Balance 62,447.08

Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 6 items -4,274.81

Total Uncleared Transactions -4,274.81

Register Balance as of 10/31/2023 58,172.27

Ending Balance 58,172.27

12:24 PM City of Sodaville
11/09/23 Reconciliation Summary

100-1001 Chase, Period Ending 10/31/2023

Page 1



Type Date Num Name Clr Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 62,756.35
Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 25 items
General Journal 09/29/2023 Planni... X -2,000.00 -2,000.00
Check 10/02/2023 EFT AGCO Finance LLC X -229.68 -2,229.68
Bill Pmt -Check 10/03/2023 EFT Comcast X -275.31 -2,504.99
Bill Pmt -Check 10/03/2023 EFT Ceco Inc X -71.44 -2,576.43
Bill Pmt -Check 10/04/2023 253 City of Lebanon X -2,050.57 -4,627.00
Bill Pmt -Check 10/04/2023 252 Amazon Capital Ser... X -574.58 -5,201.58
Bill Pmt -Check 10/06/2023 EFT City County Insuran... X -1,598.57 -6,800.15
Bill Pmt -Check 10/11/2023 EFT Consumers Power I... X -380.80 -7,180.95
Bill Pmt -Check 10/11/2023 EFT Consumers Power I... X -191.67 -7,372.62
Bill Pmt -Check 10/11/2023 EFT Consumers Power I... X -79.71 -7,452.33
Bill Pmt -Check 10/11/2023 EFT Consumers Power I... X -66.15 -7,518.48
Bill Pmt -Check 10/11/2023 EFT Consumers Power I... X -34.57 -7,553.05
Bill Pmt -Check 10/17/2023 EFT Ceco Inc X -77.43 -7,630.48
Bill Pmt -Check 10/18/2023 257 Ray Jackman Repair X -15,452.68 -23,083.16
Bill Pmt -Check 10/18/2023 259 Smith + Company X -260.00 -23,343.16
Check 10/18/2023 255 Alex McHaddad X -154.00 -23,497.16
Check 10/18/2023 256 JD Burns X -125.11 -23,622.27
Bill Pmt -Check 10/18/2023 262 Brewer & Coulombe X -60.00 -23,682.27
Bill Pmt -Check 10/18/2023 261 Wilco X -49.95 -23,732.22
Bill Pmt -Check 10/18/2023 260 WaterLab Corp. X -40.00 -23,772.22
Paycheck 10/19/2023 264 J D Burns X -2,712.68 -26,484.90
Paycheck 10/19/2023 263 Andrew A McHaddad X -2,465.62 -28,950.52
Check 10/27/2023 EFT Oregon Department ... X -7.01 -28,957.53
Check 10/30/2023 EFT IRS X -1,502.15 -30,459.68
Check 10/30/2023 EFT Oregon Department ... X -587.43 -31,047.11

Total Checks and Payments -31,047.11 -31,047.11

Deposits and Credits - 39 items
General Journal 09/29/2023 Planni... X 2,000.00 2,000.00
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 44.87 2,044.87
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 44.87 2,089.74
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 53.67 2,143.41
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 53.89 2,197.30
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 54.62 2,251.92
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 55.05 2,306.97
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 58.38 2,365.35
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 60.63 2,425.98
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 73.92 2,499.90
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 81.54 2,581.44
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 82.35 2,663.79
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 96.52 2,760.31
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 96.52 2,856.83
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 113.91 2,970.74
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 120.36 3,091.10
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 122.00 3,213.10
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 132.66 3,345.76
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 141.75 3,487.51
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 163.58 3,651.09
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 189.54 3,840.63
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 205.20 4,045.83
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 669.47 4,715.30
Deposit 10/11/2023 X 1,910.72 6,626.02
Deposit 10/12/2023 X 80.56 6,706.58
Deposit 10/19/2023 X 2,898.58 9,605.16
Transfer 10/23/2023 X 20,000.00 29,605.16
Deposit 10/30/2023 X 16.00 29,621.16
Deposit 10/30/2023 X 44.87 29,666.03
Deposit 10/30/2023 X 45.10 29,711.13
Deposit 10/30/2023 X 55.35 29,766.48
Deposit 10/30/2023 X 57.12 29,823.60
Deposit 10/30/2023 X 69.42 29,893.02
Deposit 10/30/2023 X 96.52 29,989.54
Deposit 10/30/2023 X 106.99 30,096.53
Deposit 10/30/2023 X 112.90 30,209.43

12:24 PM City of Sodaville
11/09/23 Reconciliation Detail

100-1001 Chase, Period Ending 10/31/2023

Page 1



Type Date Num Name Clr Amount Balance

Deposit 10/30/2023 X 125.62 30,335.05
Deposit 10/30/2023 X 200.32 30,535.37
Deposit 10/30/2023 X 202.47 30,737.84

Total Deposits and Credits 30,737.84 30,737.84

Total Cleared Transactions -309.27 -309.27

Cleared Balance -309.27 62,447.08

Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 6 items

Check 12/29/2021 5396 Pedersen, Glenda -75.00 -75.00
Check 01/25/2022 5408 Bailey, Christina -75.00 -150.00
Bill Pmt -Check 10/04/2023 254 League of Oregon C... -475.00 -625.00
Bill Pmt -Check 10/18/2023 258 Republic Services -77.05 -702.05
Bill Pmt -Check 10/25/2023 265 Koontz, Blasquez & ... -3,500.00 -4,202.05
Bill Pmt -Check 10/25/2023 266 Linn County Assessor -72.76 -4,274.81

Total Checks and Payments -4,274.81 -4,274.81

Total Uncleared Transactions -4,274.81 -4,274.81

Register Balance as of 10/31/2023 -4,584.08 58,172.27

Ending Balance -4,584.08 58,172.27

12:24 PM City of Sodaville
11/09/23 Reconciliation Detail

100-1001 Chase, Period Ending 10/31/2023

Page 2



Oct 31, 23

Beginning Balance 112,029.11
Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 2 items -20,000.20
Deposits and Credits - 8 items 4,702.73

Total Cleared Transactions -15,297.47

Cleared Balance 96,731.64

Register Balance as of 10/31/2023 96,731.64

Ending Balance 96,731.64

10:09 AM City of Sodaville
11/02/23 Reconciliation Summary

100-1010  LGIP, Period Ending 10/31/2023

Page 1



Type Date Num Name Clr Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 112,029.11
Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 2 items
Check 10/02/2023 X -0.20 -0.20
Transfer 10/23/2023 X -20,000.00 -20,000.20

Total Checks and Payments -20,000.20 -20,000.20

Deposits and Credits - 8 items
Deposit 07/25/2023 X 496.00 496.00
Deposit 09/29/2023 X 496.00 992.00
Deposit 10/05/2023 X 22.03 1,014.03
Deposit 10/06/2023 X 332.96 1,346.99
Deposit 10/10/2023 X 127.04 1,474.03
Deposit 10/17/2023 X 26.31 1,500.34
Deposit 10/17/2023 X 2,749.12 4,249.46
Deposit 10/31/2023 X 453.27 4,702.73

Total Deposits and Credits 4,702.73 4,702.73

Total Cleared Transactions -15,297.47 -15,297.47

Cleared Balance -15,297.47 96,731.64

Register Balance as of 10/31/2023 -15,297.47 96,731.64

Ending Balance -15,297.47 96,731.64

10:10 AM City of Sodaville
11/02/23 Reconciliation Detail

100-1010  LGIP, Period Ending 10/31/2023

Page 1



 Ordinance 23-07 
 Contracting and Purchasing 

 The City of Sodaville Ordains as Follows: 

 Section 1. Abolition of 1994 Procurement Policy 
 1.  Ordinance No. 94-1 is abolished. 

 Section 2. Introduction 
 1.  Purpose of Purchasing Policy. This Ordinance is adopted by the city council as the 

 governing body of the city to establish the rules and procedures for contracts entered into 
 and purchases made by the city. It is the policy of the city in adopting this Ordinance to 
 utilize public contracting and purchasing practices and methods that maximize the 
 efficient use of city resources and the purchasing power of city funds by: 

 a.  Promoting impartial and open competition; 
 b.  Using solicitation materials that are complete and contain a clear statement of 

 contract specifications and requirements; and 
 c.  Taking full advantage of evolving procurement methods that suit the purchasing 

 needs of the city as they emerge within various industries. 
 2.  Interpretation of Purchasing Policy. Except as specifically provided in this Ordinance, 

 public contracts and purchases shall be awarded, administered and governed according to 
 ORS Chapters 279A, 279B and 279C (the “Public Contracting Code”) and the Attorney 
 General’s Model Public Contract Rules (“Model Rules”), as they now exist. 

 a.  In furtherance of the purposes of the objective set forth above in subsection A, it 
 is the city’s intent that this Ordinance be interpreted to authorize the full use of all 
 contracting and purchasing powers described in ORS Chapters 279A, 279B and 
 279C. 

 b.  The Model Rules adopted under ORS 279A.065 shall apply to the contracts and 
 purchases of the city to the extent they do not conflict with this Ordinance and the 
 rules and regulations adopted by the city. 

 c.  In the event of a conflict between any provisions of this Ordinance and the Model 
 Rules, the provisions of this Ordinance shall prevail. 

 3.  Specific Provisions’ Precedence over General Provisions. In the event of a conflict 
 between the provisions of this Ordinance, the more specific provision shall take 
 precedence over the more general provision. 

 4.  Conflict with Federal Statutes and Regulations. Except as otherwise expressly provided 
 in ORS Chapters 279A, 279B and/or 279C, applicable federal statutes and regulations 
 govern when federal funds are involved. 

 Section 3. Definitions. 
 1.  Unless a different definition is specifically provided herein, or context clearly requires 

 otherwise, the following terms have the meanings set forth herein. Additionally, any term 
 defined in the singular includes the meaning of the plural, and vice versa. 



 a.  Administering agency. The contracting agency that solicited and established the 
 original contract in a cooperative procurement for goods, services, personal 
 services, professional services, or public improvements. 

 b.  Affected person/offeror. A person whose ability to participate in a procurement is 
 adversely impaired by a city decision. 

 c.  Architectural, engineering, and land surveying services. Professional services 
 performed by an architect, engineer, or land surveyor and includes architectural, 
 engineering or land surveying services, separately or any combination thereof, as 
 appropriate within the context of a section of this Model. 

 d.  Award. The decision to enter into a contract or purchase order with a specific 
 offeror. 

 e.  Bid. A response to an invitation to bid. 
 f.  Bidder. A person who submits a bid in response to an invitation to bid. 
 g.  Business with which a city employee is associated. Any business in which a city 

 employee is a director, officer, owner or employee, or any corporation in which a 
 city employee owns or has owned ten percent (10%) or more of any class of stock 
 at any point in the preceding calendar year. 

 h.  City. The city of Sodaville, a municipal corporation, and a contracting and 
 purchasing agency. 

 i.  City Administrator/Recorder. The person appointed by the city council to the 
 position of City Administrator/Recorder. 

 j.  Closing. The date and time announced in a solicitation document as the deadline 
 for submitting bids or offers. 

 k.  Contract. See Public Contract. 
 l.  Contractor. The person who enters into a contract with the city. 
 m.  Contract price. As the context requires: 

 i.  The maximum payment that the city will make under a contract if the 
 contractor fully performs under the contract, including bonuses, incentives 
 and contingency amounts; 

 ii.  The maximum not-to-exceed payment specified in the contract; or 
 iii.  The unit prices set forth in the contract. 

 n.  Contracting agency. A public body authorized by law to conduct a procurement. 
 o.  Cooperative procurement. A procurement conducted by, or on behalf of, one or 

 more contracting agencies. 
 p.  Days. Calendar days. 
 q.  Emergency. Involves circumstances that: 

 i.  Could not have been reasonably foreseen; 
 ii.  Create a substantial risk of loss, damage or interruption of services or a 

 substantial threat to property, public health, welfare or safety; and 
 iii.  Require prompt execution of a contract or amendment in order to remedy 

 the condition. 
 r.  Findings. The justification for a conclusion. If the justification relates to a public 

 improvement contract, findings may be based on information that includes, but is 
 not limited to: 

 i.  Operational, budget and financial data; 
 ii.  Public benefits; 



 iii.  Value engineering; 
 iv.  Specialized expertise; 
 v.  Market conditions; 

 vi.  Technical complexity; and 
 vii.  Funding sources. 

 s.  Goods and/or services. Supplies, equipment, materials and services, other than 
 personal services, and any personal property, including any tangible, intangible 
 and intellectual property and rights and licenses in relation thereto. The term 
 includes combinations of any of the items identified in the definition. 

 t.  Grant. An agreement under which: 
 i.  The city receives moneys, property or other assistance, including but not 

 limited to, federal assistance that is characterized as a grant by federal law 
 or regulation, loans, loan guarantees, credit enhancements, gifts, bequests, 
 commodities or other assets; 

 1.  The assistance received by the city is from a grantor for the 
 purpose of supporting or stimulating a program or activity of the 
 city; and 

 2.  No substantial involvement by the grantor is anticipated in the 
 program or activity other than involvement associated with 
 monitoring compliance with grant conditions; or 

 ii.  The city provides moneys, property or other assistance, including but not 
 limited to, federal assistance that is characterized as a grant by federal law 
 or regulation, loans, loan guarantees, credit enhancements, gifts, bequests, 
 commodities or other assets; 

 1.  The assistance is given to the recipient for the purpose of 
 supporting or stimulating a program or activity of the recipient; 
 and 

 2.  No substantial involvement by the city is anticipated in the 
 program or activity other than involvement associated with 
 monitoring compliance with grant conditions. 

 u.  Immediate family member. An employee’s: spouse, and parents thereof; children, 
 and spouses thereof; parents, and spouses thereof; siblings, and spouses thereof; 
 grandparents and grandchildren, and spouses thereof; and domestic partner, and 
 parents thereof. 

 v.  Offer. A bid, proposal, quote or other response to a solicitation document. 
 w.  Offeror. A person who submits an offer. 
 x.  Opening. The date, time and place announced in the solicitation document for the 

 public opening of written sealed offers. 
 y.  Original contract. The initial contract or price agreement solicited and awarded 

 during a cooperative procurement by an administering agency. 
 z.  Purchasing agency. An agency that procures goods or services, personal services, 

 or public improvements from a contractor based on the original contract 
 established by an administering agency in a cooperative procurement. 

 aa.  Person. An individual, corporation, business trust, estate, trust, partnership, 
 limited liability company, association, joint venture, governmental agency, public 



 body, public corporation or other legal or commercial entity, and any other person 
 or entity with legal capacity to contract. 

 bb.  Personal services. Services, other than professional services, that require 
 specialized skill, knowledge and resources in the application of technical or 
 scientific expertise or in the exercise of professional, artistic or management 
 discretion or judgment. 

 1.  Qualifications and performance history, expertise and creativity, 
 and the ability to exercise sound professional judgment are 
 typically the primary considerations when selecting a personal 
 services contractor, with price being secondary. 

 2.  Personal services contracts include, but are not limited to, the 
 following classes of contracts: 

 a.  Contracts for services performed in a professional capacity, 
 including but not limited to, services of an accountant, 
 attorney, auditor, court reporter, information technology 
 consultant, physician or broadcaster; 

 b.  Contracts for professional or expert witnesses or 
 consultants to provide services or testimony relating to 
 existing or potential litigation or legal matters in which the 
 city is or may become interested; 

 c.  Contracts for services as an artist in the performing or fine 
 arts, including any person identified as a photographer, film 
 maker, actor, director, painter, weaver or sculptor; 

 d.  Contracts for services that are specialized, creative or 
 research-oriented; and/or 

 e.  Contracts for services as a consultant. 
 cc.  Price agreement. A contract for the procurement of goods or services at a set price 

 which has: 
 i.  No guarantee of a minimum or maximum purchase; or 

 ii.  An initial order or minimum purchase combined with a continuing 
 contractor obligation to provide goods or services with no guarantee of 
 any minimum or maximum additional purchase. 

 dd.  Procurement. The act of purchasing, leasing, renting or otherwise acquiring goods 
 or services, personal services or professional services. It includes each function 
 and procedure undertaken or required to be undertaken to enter into a contract, 
 administer a contract and obtain the performance of a contract for goods or 
 services, personal services or professional services. 

 ee.  Professional services. Architectural, engineering, land surveying, 
 photogrammetric, transportation planning or related services, or any combination 
 of these services, provided by a consultant. 

 ff.  Proposal. A response to a request for proposals. 
 gg.  Proposer. A person that submits a proposal in response to a request for proposals. 
 hh.  Provider. As the context requires, a supplier of goods or services, personal 

 services, or professional services. 
 ii.  Public contract. A sale or other disposal, or a purchase, lease, rental or other 

 acquisition, by the city of personal property, goods or services, including personal 



 services, professional services, public improvements, public works, minor 
 alterations, or ordinary repair or maintenance necessary to preserve a public 
 improvement. It does not include grants. 

 jj.  Public contracting. Procurement activities relating to obtaining, modifying or 
 administering contracts or price agreements. 

 kk.  Public improvement. A project for construction, reconstruction or major 
 renovation on real property, by or for the city. It does not include projects for 
 which no funds of the city are directly or indirectly used, except for participation 
 that is incidental or related primarily to project design or inspection; or emergency 
 work, minor alteration, or ordinary repair or maintenance necessary to preserve a 
 public improvement. 

 ll.  Public improvement contract. A contract for a public improvement. This does not 
 include a contract for emergency work, minor alterations, or ordinary repair, or 
 maintenance necessary to maintain a public improvement. 

 mm.  Recycled product. All materials, goods and supplies, not less than fifty percent 
 (50%) of the total weight of which consists of secondary and post-consumer waste 
 with not less than ten percent (10%) of its total weight consisting of 
 post-consumer waste. It includes any product that could have been disposed of as 
 solid waste, having completed its life cycle as a consumer item, but otherwise is 
 refurbished for reuse without substantial alteration of the product’s form. 

 nn.  Related services. Personal services, other than architectural, engineering and land 
 survey services, that are related to the planning, design, engineering or oversight 
 of public improvement projects or components thereof, including but not limited 
 to: 

 i.  Landscape architectural services; 
 ii.  Facilities planning services; 

 iii.  Energy planning services; 
 iv.  Space planning services; 
 v.  Environmental impact studies; 

 vi.  Hazardous substances or hazardous waste or toxic substances testing 
 services; 

 vii.  Wetland delineation studies; 
 viii.  Wetland mitigation services; 

 ix.  Native American studies; 
 x.  Historical research services; 

 xi.  Endangered species studies; 
 xii.  Rare plant studies; 

 xiii.  Biological services; 
 xiv.  Archaeological services; 
 xv.  Cost estimating services; 

 xvi.  Appraising services; 
 xvii.  Material testing services; 

 xviii.  Mechanical system balancing services; 
 xix.  Commissioning services; 
 xx.  Project management services; 



 xxi.  Construction management services and owner’s representatives service; 
 and/or 

 xxii.  Land use planning services. 
 oo.  Request for proposals. A solicitation document used for soliciting proposals. 
 pp.  Request for qualifications. A written document issued by the city describing 

 particular services to which potential contractors respond with a description of 
 their experience and qualifications that results in a list of potential contractors 
 who are qualified to perform those services, but which is not intended to create a 
 contract between a potential contractor on the list and the city. 

 qq.  Revenue generating agreements. Contracts or agreements for services that 
 generate revenue and that are typically awarded to the offeror proposing the most 
 advantageous or highest monetary return. 

 rr.  Scope. The range and attributes of the goods or services described in a 
 procurement document. 

 ss.  Signed or signature. Any mark, word or symbol attached to or logically associated 
 with a document and executed or adopted by a person with the authority and 
 intent to be bound. 

 tt.  Solicitation. As the context requires: 
 i.  A request for the purpose of soliciting offers, including an invitation for 

 bid, a request for proposal, a request for quotation, a request for 
 qualifications, or other similar documents; 

 ii.  The process of notifying prospective offerors of a request for offers; 
 and/or 

 iii.  The solicitation document. 
 uu.  Work. The furnishing of all materials, equipment, labor, and incidentals necessary 

 to successfully complete any individual item in a contract and successful 
 completion of all duties and obligations imposed by the contract. 

 vv.  Written or in writing. Conventional paper documents, whether handwritten, 
 typewritten or printed, in contrast to spoken words, including electronic 
 transmissions or facsimile documents when required by applicable law or 
 permitted by a solicitation document or contract. 

 Section 4. Authority. 
 1.  City Council as Local Contract Review Board. The city council is designated as the local 

 contract review board of the city and has all the rights, powers, and authority necessary to 
 carry out the provisions of this Ordinance, the Public Contracting Code, and/or the Model 
 Rules. 

 2.  Application of Attorney General’s Model Rules of Procedure. Pursuant to ORS 
 279A.065(6), the city has elected to establish its own policy for public contracting and 
 purchasing. Except as provided herein, the Model Rules do not apply to the city. 

 3.  Inapplicability of Ordinance. This Ordinance does not apply to the following: 
 a.  Contracts or agreement to which the Public Contracting Code does not apply; 
 b.  Contracts, intergovernmental and interstate agreements entered into pursuant to 

 ORS Chapter 190; 
 c.  Grants; 
 d.  Acquisitions or disposals of real property or interests in real property; 



 e.  Procurements from an Oregon Corrections Enterprise program; 
 f.  Contracts, agreements or other documents entered into, issued or established in 

 connection with: 
 i.  The incurring of debt, including any associated contracts, agreements or 

 other documents, regardless of whether the obligations that the contracts, 
 agreements or other documents establish are general, special or limited; 

 ii.  The making of program loans and similar extensions or advance of funds, 
 aid or assistance by the city to a public or private person for the purpose of 
 carrying out, promoting or sustaining activities or programs authorized by 
 law other than for the construction of public works or public 
 improvements; 

 iii.  The investment of funds by the city as authorized by law; or 
 iv.  Banking, money management or other predominantly financial 

 transactions that, by their character, cannot practically be established 
 under the competitive contractor selection procedures, based upon the 
 findings of the City Administrator/Recorder. 

 g.  Contracts for employee benefit plans; 
 h.  Contracts with newspapers and other publications for the placement of 

 advertisements or public notices; 
 i.  Contracts for items where the price is regulated and available from a single source 

 or limited number of sources; 
 j.  Insurance contracts; 
 k.  Revenue-generating agreements; 
 l.  Federal agreements where applicable federal statutes and regulations govern when 

 federal funds are involved and the federal statutes or regulations conflict with any 
 provision of the Oregon Public Contracting Code or this Ordinance, or require 
 additional conditions in public contracts not authorized by the Oregon Public 
 Contracting Code or this Ordinance. 

 4.  Authority of City Administrator/Recorder. For contracts and purchases covered by this 
 Ordinance, the City Administrator/Recorder is authorized to: 

 a.  Award contracts and amendments without specific authorization by the city 
 council whenever the contract amount is $10,000 or less and the proposed 
 expenditure is included in the current fiscal year budget. 

 b.  Execute contracts and amendments with specific authorization by the city council 
 whenever the contract or amendment amount is greater than $10,000 and the 
 proposed expenditure is included in the current fiscal year budget. 

 c.  As the purchasing agent for the city, the City Administrator/Recorder is 
 authorized to: 

 i.  Advertise for bids or proposals without specific authorization from the city 
 council, when the proposed purchase is included within the current fiscal 
 year budget. 

 ii.  Advertise for bids or proposals when the proposed purchase is not 
 included within the current fiscal year budget after the city council 
 approves the proposed budget transfer. 



 iii.  Purchase goods, services and/or property without specific authorization by 
 the city council whenever the amount is $10,000 or less and the proposed 
 expenditures are included in the current fiscal year budget. 

 iv.  Purchase goods, services and/or property with specific authorization by 
 the city council whenever the amount is greater than $10,000 and the 
 proposed expenditure is included in the current fiscal year budget. 

 v.  Purchases of any goods or services in excess of $7,500 from city 
 employees require authorization of the City Administrator/Recorder. 

 vi.  Departments shall communicate purchase requirements to the City 
 Administrator/Recorder and plan sufficiently in advance so that orders can 
 be placed in economical quantities. 

 d.  Delegate, in writing, the signature authority described in the above subsection (2) 
 and the purchasing powers described in the above subsection (3). In the absence 
 of a written delegation to the contrary, and in the absence of the City 
 Administrator/Recorder, the signature authority described in the above subsection 
 (2) and the purchasing powers described in the above subsection (3) are delegated 
 in order as follows: 

 i.  Mayor; 
 ii.  Council President. 

 e.  Adopt forms, procedures, computer software, and administrative rules for all city 
 purchases regardless of the amount. 

 i.  When adopting the forms, procedures, computer software, and/or 
 administrative rules, the City Administrator/Recorder shall establish 
 practices and policies that: 

 1.  Do not encourage favoritism or substantially diminish competition; 
 and 

 2.  Allow the city to take advantage of the cost-saving benefits of 
 alternative contracting methods and practices; 

 ii.  The city shall use these forms, procedures, computer software and 
 administrative rules unless they conflict with the Ordinance. 

 2.  Favorable Terms. Contracts and purchases shall be negotiated on the most favorable 
 terms in accordance with this Ordinance, other adopted ordinances, state and federal 
 laws, policies and procedures. 

 3.  Unauthorized Contracts or Purchases. Public contracts entered into or purchases made as 
 authorized herein shall be voidable at the sole discretion of the city. 

 a.  The city may take appropriate action in response to execution of contracts or 
 purchases made contrary to this provision. 

 b.  Such actions include, but are not limited to, providing educational guidance, 
 imposing disciplinary measures, and/or holding individuals personally liable for 
 such contracts or purchases. 

 4.  Purchasing from City Employees or Employees’ Immediate Family Prohibited. No 
 contract shall be entered into with or purchase made from any city employee or 
 employee’s immediate family member, or any business with which the employee is 
 associated, unless: 

 a.  The contract or purchase is expressly authorized and approved by the city council; 
 or 



 b.  The need for the contract or purchase occurs during a state of emergency, and the 
 City Administrator/Recorder finds, in writing, that the acquisition from the 
 employee, employee’s immediate family member or business with which the 
 employee is associated is the most expeditious means to eliminate the threat to 
 public health, safety and welfare. 

 Section 5. Preferences. 
 1.  Discretionary Local Preference. If the solicitation is in writing, the City 

 Administrator/Recorder may provide a specified percentage preference of not more than 
 ten percent (10%) for goods fabricated or processed entirely in Oregon or services 
 performed entirely in Oregon. 

 a.  When a preference is provided under this subsection, and more than one offeror 
 qualifies for the preference, the City Administrator/Recorder may give further 
 preference to a qualifying offeror that resides in or is headquartered in Oregon. 

 b.  The City Administrator/Recorder may establish a preference percentage of ten 
 percent (10%) or higher if the City Administrator/Recorder makes a written 
 determination that good cause exists to establish the higher percentage, explains 
 the reasons, and provides evidence of good cause. 

 c.  The preference described in this subsection cannot be applied to a contract for 
 emergency work, minor alterations, and ordinary repairs or maintenance of public 
 improvements. 

 2.  Mandatory Tie Breaker Preference. If offers are identical in price, fitness, availability, 
 and the quality is identical, and the city desires to award the contract, the preferences 
 provided in ORS 279A.120 shall be applied prior to the contract award. 

 3.  Reciprocal Preference. Reciprocal preferences must be given when evaluating bids, if 
 applicable under ORS 279A.120. 

 4.  Preference for Recycled Materials and Supplies. Preferences for recycled goods shall be 
 given when comparing goods, if applicable under ORS 279A.125. The City 
 Administrator/Recorder shall adopt standards to determine if goods are manufactured 
 from recycled materials. 

 Section 6. General Provisions. 
 1.  Public Notice. Unless otherwise specifically provided by this Ordinance, any notice 

 required to be published by this Ordinance may be published using any method the City 
 Administrator/Recorder deems appropriate, including but not limited to, mailing notice to 
 persons that have requested notice in writing, placing notice on the city’s website, or 
 publishing in statewide trade or local publications. 

 2.  Procedure for Competitive Verbal Quotes and Proposals. Where allowed by this 
 Ordinance, solicitations by competitive verbal quotes and proposals shall be based on a 
 description of the quantity of goods or services to be provided, and may be solicited and 
 received by phone, or facsimile or email if authorized by the City 
 Administrator/Recorder. 

 a.  A good faith effort shall be made to contact at least three (3) potential providers. 



 b.  If three (3) potential providers are not reasonably available, fewer will suffice, 
 provided the reasons three potential providers are not reasonably available is 
 documented as part of the procurement file. 

 3.  Procedure for Informal Written Solicitation. Where allowed by this Ordinance, informal 
 written solicitations shall be made by a solicitation document sent to not less than three 
 (3) prospective providers. 

 a.  The solicitation document shall request competitive price quotes or competitive 
 proposals, and include: 

 i.  The date, time and place that price quotes or proposals are due; 
 ii.  A description or quantity of the good or service required; 

 iii.  Any statement of period for which price quotes or proposals must remain 
 firm, irrevocable, valid and binding on the offeror. If no time is stated in 
 the solicitation document, the period shall be thirty (30) days; 

 iv.  Any required contract terms or conditions; and 
 v.  Any required bid form or proposed format. 

 b.  Price quotes or proposals shall be received by the City Administrator/Recorder at 
 the date, time and place established in the solicitation document. 

 i.  The City Administrator/Recorder shall keep a written record of the sources 
 of the quotes or proposals. 

 ii.  If three (3) quotes or proposals are not reasonably available, fewer shall 
 suffice, but the City Administrator/Recorder shall make a written record of 
 the effort made to obtain quotes or proposals as part of the procurement 
 file. 

 4.  Procurement Methods for Professional Services and Public Improvements. The city shall 
 apply the Public Contracting Code and the Model Rules when procuring professional 
 services and public improvements and processing protests thereof. 

 5.  Retroactive Approval. Retroactive approval of a contract means the award or execution 
 of a contract where work was commenced without final award or execution. The City 
 Administrator/Recorder may make a retroactive approval of a contract only if the 
 responsible employee submits a copy of the proposed contract to the City 
 Administrator/Recorder, along with a written request for contract retroactive approval, 
 that contains: 

 a.  An explanation of the reason work was commenced before the contract was 
 finally awarded or executed; 

 b.  A description of steps being taken to prevent similar occurrences in the future; 
 c.  Evidence that, but for the failure to finally award or execute the contract, the 

 employee complied with all other steps required to properly select a contractor 
 and negotiate the contract; and 

 d.  A proposed form of contract. 

 Section 7. Source Selection Methods for Goods or 
 Services, Other Than Personal or Professional Services. 

 1.  Small Procurements. Contracts for or purchases of goods or services with a contract price 
 of $10,000 or less are small procurements. 



 a.  Purchases less than $7,500. The City Administrator/Recorder may use any 
 procurement method the City Administrator/Recorder deems practical or 
 convenient, including direct negotiation or award, for small procurements of 
 goods or services with a contract price of less than $7,500. 

 b.  Purchases between $7,500 and $10,000. The City Administrator/Recorder may 
 use competitive verbal quotes or proposals and informal written solicitations for 
 small procurements of goods or services with a contract price between $7,500 and 
 $10,000. 

 c.  Negotiations. The City Administrator/Recorder may negotiate with an offeror to 
 clarify competitive verbal quotes or proposals or informal written proposals, or to 
 make modifications that will make the quote or proposal acceptable or more 
 advantageous to the city. 

 d.  Award. If a contract is awarded, the award shall be made to the offeror whose 
 verbal quote or proposal the City Administrator/Recorder determines will best 
 serve the interests of the city, taking into account price as well as any other 
 relevant considerations, including but not limited to, experience, expertise, 
 product functionality, suitability for a particular purpose, delivery, and contractor 
 responsibility. 

 e.  Amendments. Small procurement contracts may be amended if the cumulative 
 amendments do not increase the total contract price to more than twenty-five 
 percent (25%) of the original contract price. 

 f.  Public notice. No public notice of small procurements is required. 
 2.  Intermediate Procurements. Contracts for goods or services with a contract price greater 

 than $10,000 and less than or equal to $50,000 are intermediate procurements. 
 a.  Intermediate procurements shall be by informal written solicitation. 
 b.  Negotiations. The City Administrator/Recorder may negotiate with an offeror to 

 clarify an informal written solicitation, or to make modifications that will make 
 the quote, proposal, or solicitation acceptable or more advantageous to the city. 

 c.  Award. If a contract is awarded, the award shall be made to the offeror whose 
 competitive verbal quote or proposal or informal written solicitation the City 
 Administrator/Recorder determines will best serve the interests of the city, taking 
 into account price or any other relevant considerations, including but not limited 
 to, experience, expertise, product functionality, suitability for a particular purpose, 
 delivery and contractor responsibility. 

 d.  Amendments. Intermediate procurement contracts may be amended if the 
 cumulative amendments do not increase the total contract price by more than 
 twenty-five percent (25%) of the original contract price. 

 e.  Public notice. Public notice is required for intermediate procurements with a 
 contract price equal to or exceeding $10,000. 

 3.  Large Procurements. Contracts for goods or services with a contract price greater than 
 $50,000 are large procurements. 

 a.  The City Administrator/Recorder may use competitive sealed bidding as set forth 
 in ORS 279B.055, or competitive sealed proposals as set forth in ORS 279B.060. 

 b.  When using either competitive sealed bidding or competitive sealed proposals, the 
 City Administrator/Recorder shall follow the applicable procedures set out in the 
 Model Rules. 



 c.  The city shall apply the applicable procedure set out in the Model Rules for 
 processing protests of large procurements. 

 Section 8. Personal Services Contracts. 
 1.  Classification of Services as Personal Services. In addition to the classes of personal 

 services contracts identified in the definition of personal services contracts, the City 
 Administrator/Recorder may classify additional specific types of services as personal 
 services. In determining whether a service is a personal service, the City 
 Administrator/Recorder shall consider: 

 a.  Whether the work requires specialized skills, knowledge and resources in the 
 application of technical or scientific expertise, or the exercise of professional, 
 artistic or management discretion or judgment; 

 b.  Whether the city intends to rely on the contractor’s specialized skills, knowledge 
 and expertise to accomplish the work; and 

 c.  Whether selecting a contractor primarily on the basis of qualifications, rather than 
 price, would most likely meet the city’s needs and result in obtaining satisfactory 
 contract performance and optimal value. 

 d.  A service shall not be classified as personal services for the purposes of this 
 Ordinance if: 

 i.  The work has traditionally been performed by contractors selected 
 primarily on the basis of price; or 

 ii.  The services do not require specialized skills, knowledge and resources in 
 the application of highly technical or scientific expertise, or the exercise of 
 professional, artistic or management discretion or judgment. 

 2.  Requests for Qualifications. At the City Administrator/Recorder’s discretion, a request 
 for qualifications may be used to determine whether competition exists to perform the 
 needed personal services or to establish a non-binding list of qualified contractors for 
 individual negotiation, informal written solicitations or requests for proposals. 

 a.  A request for qualifications shall describe the particular type of personal services 
 that will be sought, the qualifications the contractor must have to be considered, 
 and the evaluation factors and their relative importance. 

 b.  A request for qualifications may require information including, but not limited to: 
 i.  The contractor's particular capability to perform the required personal 

 services; 
 ii.  The number of experienced personnel available to perform the required 

 personal services; 
 iii.  The specific qualifications and experience of personnel; 
 iv.  A list of similar personal services the contractor has completed; 
 v.  References concerning past performance; and 

 vi.  Any other information necessary to evaluate the contractor’s 
 qualifications. 

 c.  A voluntary or mandatory qualifications pre-submission meeting may be held for 
 all interested contractors to discuss the proposed personal services. The request 
 for qualifications shall include the date, time and location of the meeting. 



 d.  Unless the responses to a request for qualifications establish that competition does 
 not exist, the request for qualifications is canceled, or all responses to the request 
 for qualifications are rejected, and all respondents who meet the qualifications set 
 forth in the request for qualifications shall receive notice of any required personal 
 services and have an opportunity to submit a proposal in response to request for 
 proposals. 

 3.  Direct Negotiations. Personal services may be procured through direct negotiations if: 
 a.  The contract price does not exceed $50,000 and the work is within a budgetary 

 appropriation or approved by the city council; or 
 b.  The confidential personal services, including special counsel, or professional or 

 expert witnesses or consultants, are necessary to assist with pending or threatened 
 litigation or other legal matters in which the city may have an interest; or 

 c.  The nature of the personal service is not project-driven but requires an ongoing, 
 long-term relationship of knowledge and trust. 

 d.  Amendments. Personal services contracts procured by direct negotiation pursuant 
 to this section may be amended, provided the amendment is within the scope of 
 the original contract and the cumulative amount of the amendments does not 
 increase the total contract price by more than twenty-five percent (25%) over the 
 original contract price; or the amendment is necessary to complete the work being 
 performed and it would be unreasonable or impracticable to seek another provider 
 within the time frames needed to complete the work. 

 e.  Public Notice. No public notice of personal services contracts procured by direct 
 negotiations is required. 

 4.  Informal Written Solicitations. An informal written solicitation process may be used for 
 personal services when the contract price is less than $125,000. 

 a.  An informal written solicitation shall solicit proposals from at least three (3) 
 qualified providers. If the City Administrator/Recorder determines three (3) 
 qualified providers are not reasonably available, fewer shall suffice if the reasons 
 three (3) providers are not reasonably available are documented in the 
 procurement file. 

 b.  The solicitation document shall include: 
 i.  The date, time and place that proposals are due; 

 ii.  A description of personal services sought, or the project to be undertaken; 
 iii.  Any statement of the time period for which proposals must remain firm, 

 irrevocable, valid and binding on the offeror. If no time is stated in the 
 solicitation document, the period shall be thirty (30) days; 

 iv.  Any required contract terms or conditions; and 
 v.  Any required bid form or proposal format. 

 c.  Selection and ranking of proposals may be based on the following criteria: 
 i.  Particular capability to perform the personal services required; 

 ii.  Experienced staff available to perform the personal services required, 
 including the proposer's recent, current and projected workloads; 

 iii.  Performance history; 
 iv.  Approach and philosophy used in providing personal services; 
 v.  Fees or costs; 



 vi.  Geographic proximity to the project or the area where the services are to 
 be performed; and 

 vii.  Such other factors deemed appropriate, including a desire to ensure an 
 equitable distribution of work among highly qualified contractors. 

 d.  The City Administrator/Recorder shall maintain written documentation of the 
 solicitation, including solicitation attempts, responses, and provider names and 
 addresses in the procurement file. 

 e.  Amendments. Personal services contracts procured by informal written 
 solicitations pursuant to this section may be amended, provided the amendment is 
 within the scope of the original contract and the cumulative amount of the 
 amendments does not increase the total contract price by more than twenty-five 
 percent (25%) over the original contract price; or the amendment is necessary to 
 complete the work being performed and it would be unreasonable or 
 impracticable to seek another provider within the time frames needed to complete 
 the work. 

 f.  Public Notice. No public notice of personal services contracts procured by 
 informal written solicitations pursuant to this section is required. 

 5.  Requests for Proposals. A request for proposals shall be used to procure personal services 
 when the contract price is $50,000 or more or the complexity of the project requires the 
 use of a formal competitive process to determine whether a particular proposal is most 
 advantageous to the city. 

 a.  Request for Proposal. The request for proposal shall include: 
 i.  Notice of any pre-offer conference, including: 

 1.  The time, date and location; 
 2.  Whether attendance at the pre-offer conference is mandatory or 

 voluntary; and 
 3.  A provision that statements made by representatives of the city at 

 the pre-offer conference are not binding unless confirmed by 
 written addendum. 

 ii.  The form and instructions for submission of proposals, including the 
 location where proposals must be submitted, the date and time by which 
 proposals must be received and any other special information, e.g., 
 whether proposals may be submitted by electronic means; 

 iii.  The name and title of the person designated for the receipt of proposals 
 and the person designated as the contact person for the procurement, if 
 different; 

 iv.  A date, time and place that pre-qualification applications, if any, must be 
 filed and the classes of work, if any, for which proposers must be 
 pre-qualified; 

 v.  A statement that the city may cancel the procurement or reject any or all 
 proposals; 

 vi.  The date, time and place of opening; 
 vii.  The office where the request for proposals may be reviewed; 

 viii.  A description of the personal services to be procured; 
 ix.  The evaluation criteria; 



 x.  The anticipated schedule, deadlines, evaluation process and protest 
 process; 

 xi.  The form and amount of any proposal security deemed reasonable and 
 prudent by the City Administrator/Recorder to protect the city’s interests; 

 xii.  A description of the manner in which proposals will be evaluated, 
 including the relative importance of price and other evaluation factors 
 used to rate the proposals; 

 xiii.  If more than one tier of competitive evaluation will be used, a description 
 of the process under which the proposals will be evaluated in the 
 subsequent tiers; 

 xiv.  If contracts will be awarded to more than one personal services contractor, 
 an identification of the manner in which the city will determine the 
 number of contracts to be awarded, or that the manner will be left to the 
 city’s discretion at time of award; 

 xv.  If contracts will be awarded to more than one personal services contractor, 
 the criteria to be used to choose from the multiple contracts when 
 acquiring personal services shall be identified; 

 xvi.  All required contract terms and conditions, including the statutorily 
 required provisions in ORS 279B.220, 279B.230 and 279B.235; and 

 xvii.  Any terms and conditions authorized for negotiation. 
 b.  Public Notice. The City Administrator/Recorder shall provide public notice of a 

 request for proposals for personal services. 
 i.  Public notice shall be given not less than twenty-one (21) days prior to 

 closing for the request for proposals, unless the City 
 Administrator/Recorder determines that a shorter interval is in the public's 
 interest, or a shorter interval will not substantially affect competition. 

 ii.  The City Administrator/Recorder shall document the specific reasons for 
 the shorter public notice period in the procurement file. 

 c.  Amendments. Personal services contracts procured by requests for proposals 
 pursuant to this section may be amended, provided the amendment is within the 
 scope of the original contract and the cumulative amount of the amendments does 
 not increase the total contract price by more than twenty-five percent (25%) over 
 the original contract price; or the amendment is necessary to complete the work 
 being performed and it would be unreasonable or impracticable to seek another 
 provider within the time frames needed to complete the work. 

 Section 9. Alternative Source Selection Methods for 
 Goods or Services & Personal Services. 

 1.  Sole-Source Procurements. A contract may be awarded as a sole-source procurement 
 without competition pursuant to this section. 

 a.  Determination of Sole Source. Before a sole-source contract may be awarded, the 
 City Administrator/Recorder shall make written findings that the goods or 
 services, personal services or professional services are available from only one 
 source, based on one or more of the following criteria: 



 i.  The efficient use of existing goods or services, personal services or 
 professional services requires the acquisition of compatible goods or 
 services, personal services or professional services that are available from 
 only one source; 

 ii.  The goods or services, personal services or professional services are 
 available from only one source and required for the exchange of software 
 or data with other public or private agencies; 

 iii.  The goods or services, personal services or professional services are 
 available from only one source, and are needed for use in a pilot or an 
 experimental project; or 

 iv.  Other facts or circumstances exist that support the conclusion that the 
 goods or services, personal services or professional services are available 
 from only one source. 

 b.  Negotiations. To the extent reasonably practical, contract terms advantageous to 
 the city shall be negotiated with the sole source provider. 

 c.  Notice. The City Administrator/Recorder shall post notice of any determination 
 that the sole source selection method will be used on the city’s website not less 
 than ten (10) days prior to the date a sole source contract will be awarded. The 
 notice shall describe the goods or services, personal services or professional 
 services to be procured, identify the prospective contractor and include the date 
 and time when, and place where, protests of the use of a sole source selection 
 method must be filed. 

 2.  Special Procurements. In its capacity as contract review board for the city, the city 
 council, upon its own initiative or upon request of the City Administrator/Recorder, may 
 create special selection, evaluation and award procedures for, or may exempt from 
 competition, the award of a specific contract or class of contracts as provided in this 
 section. 

 a.  Basis for Approval. The approval of a special solicitation method or exemption 
 from competition must be based upon a record before the city council that 
 contains the following: 

 i.  The nature of the contract or class of contracts for which the special 
 solicitation or exemption is requested; 

 ii.  The estimated contract price or cost of the project, if relevant; 
 iii.  Findings to support the substantial cost savings, enhancement in quality or 

 performance, or other public benefit anticipated by the proposed selection 
 method or exemption from competitive solicitation; 

 iv.  Findings to support the reason that approval of the request would be 
 unlikely to encourage favoritism or diminish competition for the public 
 contract or class of public contracts, or would otherwise substantially 
 promote the public interest in a manner that could not practicably be 
 realized by complying with the solicitation requirements that would 
 otherwise be applicable under these regulations; 

 v.  A description of the proposed alternative contracting methods to be 
 employed; and 

 vi.  The estimated date by which it would be necessary to let the contract(s). 



 b.  In making a determination regarding a special selection method, the city council 
 may consider the type, cost, amount of the contract or class of contracts, number 
 of persons available to make offers, and such other factors as it may deem 
 appropriate. 

 c.  Hearing. The city shall approve the special solicitation or exemption after a public 
 hearing before the city council. 

 i.  At the public hearing, the city shall offer an opportunity for any interested 
 party to appear and present comment. 

 ii.  The city council shall consider the findings and may approve the 
 exemption as proposed or as modified by the city council after providing 
 an opportunity for public comment. 

 3.  Contracts. Subject to award at the City Administrator/Recorder’s discretion. The 
 following classes of contracts may be awarded in any manner that the City 
 Administrator/Recorder deems appropriate to the city’s needs, including by direct 
 appointment or purchase. Except where otherwise provided, the City 
 Administrator/Recorder shall make a record of the method of award. 

 a.  Equipment Repair. Contracts for equipment repair or overhauling, provided the 
 service or parts required are unknown and the cost cannot be determined without 
 extensive preliminary dismantling or testing. 

 b.  Government-Regulated Items. Contracts for the purchase of items for which 
 prices or selection of suppliers are regulated by a governmental authority. 

 c.  Non-Owned Property. Contracts or arrangements for the sale or other disposal of 
 abandoned property or other personal property not owned by the city. 

 d.  Structures. Contracts for the disposal of structures located on city-owned property 
 in the event of an emergency. 

 e.  Renewals. Contracts that are being renewed in accordance with their terms are not 
 considered to be newly issued contracts and are not subject to competitive 
 procurement procedures. 

 f.  Temporary Use of City-Owned Property. The city may negotiate and enter into a 
 license, permit or other contract for the temporary use of city-owned property 
 without using a competitive selection process if: 

 i.  The contract results from an unsolicited proposal to the city based on the 
 unique attributes of the property or the unique needs of the proposer; 

 ii.  The proposed use of the property is consistent with the city’s use of the 
 property and the public interest; and 

 iii.  The city reserves the right to terminate the contract without penalty, in the 
 event that the city determines that the contract is no longer consistent with 
 the city’s present or planned use of the property or the public interest. 

 g.  Utilities. Contracts for the purchase of steam, power, heat, water, 
 telecommunications services, and other utilities in the event of an emergency. 

 h.  Conference/Meeting Room Contracts. Contracts entered into for meeting room 
 rental, hotel rooms, food and beverage, and incidental costs related to conferences 
 and city-sponsored workshops and trainings. 

 4.  Emergency Procurements. When the City Administrator/Recorder determines that 
 immediate execution of a contract within the City Administrator/Recorder’s authority is 
 necessary to prevent substantial damage or injury to persons or property, the City 



 Administrator/Recorder may execute the contract without competitive selection and 
 award or city council approval, but, where time permits, competitive quotes should be 
 sought from at least three (3) providers. 

 a.  When the City Administrator/Recorder enters into an emergency contract, the 
 City Administrator/Recorder shall, as soon as possible in light of the emergency 
 circumstances, document the nature of the emergency, the method used for 
 selection of the particular contractor, and the reason why the selection method 
 was deemed in the best interest of the city and the public. 

 b.  The City Administrator/Recorder shall also notify the city council of the facts and 
 circumstances surrounding the emergency execution of the contract. 

 5.  Cooperative Procurement Contracts. Cooperative procurements may be made without 
 competitive solicitation as provided in the Public Contracting Code. 

 Section 10. Surplus Property. 
 1.  General Methods. Surplus property may be disposed of by any of the following methods 

 upon a determination by the City Administrator/Recorder that the method of disposal is 
 in the best interest of the city. Factors that may be considered by the City 
 Administrator/Recorder include costs of sale, administrative costs, and public benefits to 
 the city. 

 a.  Governments. Without competition, by transfer or sale to another government 
 department or public agency. 

 b.  Auction. By publicly advertised auction to the highest bidder. 
 c.  Bids. By publicly advertised invitation to bid. 
 d.  Liquidation Sale. By liquidation sale using a commercially recognized third-party 

 liquidator selected in accordance with this Ordinance for the award of personal 
 services contracts. 

 e.  Fixed Price Sale. The City Administrator/Recorder may establish a selling price 
 based upon an independent appraisal or published schedule of values generally 
 accepted by the insurance industry, schedule and advertise a sale date, and sell to 
 the first buyer meeting the sales terms. 

 f.  Trade-In. By trade-in, in conjunction with acquisition of other price-based items 
 under a competitive solicitation. The solicitation shall require the offer to state the 
 total value assigned to the surplus property to be traded. 

 g.  Donation. By donation to any organization operating within or providing a service 
 to residents of the state of Oregon, which is recognized by the Internal Revenue 
 Service as an organization described in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
 Code of 1986, as amended. 

 2.  Disposal of Property with Minimal Value. Surplus property which has a value of less than 
 $500, or for which the costs of sale are likely to exceed sale proceeds, may be disposed of 
 by any means determined to be cost-effective, including by disposal as waste. The 
 employee making the disposal shall make a record of the value of the item and the 
 manner of disposal. 

 3.  Personal-Use Items. An item (or indivisible set) of specialized and personal use with a 
 current value of less than $100 may be sold to the employee or retired or terminated 
 employee for whose use it was purchased. These items may be sold for fair market value 
 without bid and by a process deemed most efficient by the City Administrator/Recorder. 



 4.  Restriction on Sale to City Employees. City employees shall not compete, as members of 
 the public, for the purchase of publicly sold surplus property. 

 5.  Conveyance to Purchaser. Upon the consummation of a sale of surplus personal property, 
 the city shall make, execute and deliver a bill of sale or similar instrument signed on 
 behalf of the city, conveying the property in question to the purchaser and delivering 
 possession, or the right to take possession, of the property to the purchaser. 

 Section 11. Protest and Appeal Procedures. 
 1.  Appeal of Debarment or Prequalification Decision. 

 a.  Right to Hearing. Any person who has been debarred from competing for the 
 city’s contracts or for whom prequalification has been denied, revoked or revised 
 may appeal the city’s decision to the city council as provided in this section. 

 b.  Filing of Appeal. The person shall file a written notice of appeal with the City 
 Administrator/Recorder within five (5) business days after the prospective 
 contractor’s receipt of notice of the determination of debarment or denial of 
 prequalification. 

 c.  Notification of City Council. Immediately upon receipt of such notice of appeal, 
 the City Administrator/Recorder shall notify the city council of the appeal. 

 d.  Hearing. The procedure for appeal from a debarment or denial, revocation or 
 revision of prequalification shall be as follows: 

 i.  Promptly upon receipt of notice of appeal, the city shall notify the 
 appellant of the date, time and place of the hearing; 

 ii.  The city council shall conduct the hearing and decide the appeal within 
 thirty (30) days after receiving notice of the appeal from the City 
 Administrator/Recorder; and 

 iii.  At the hearing, the city council shall reconsider, without regard to the 
 underlying decision giving rise to the appeal, the notice of debarment, or 
 the notice of denial, revocation or revision of prequalification, the 
 standards of responsibility upon which the decision on prequalification 
 was based, or the reasons listed for debarment, and any evidence provided 
 by the parties. 

 e.  Decision. The city council shall set forth in writing the reasons for the decision. 
 f.  Costs. The city council may allocate its costs for the hearing between the 

 appellant and the city. 
 i.  The allocation shall be based upon facts found by the city council and 

 stated in the city council’s decision that, in the city council’s opinion, 
 warrant such allocation of costs. 

 ii.  If the city council does not allocate costs, the costs shall be paid by the 
 appellant if the decision is upheld, or by the city if the decision is 
 overturned. 

 iii.  Judicial Review. The decision of the city council may be reviewed only 
 upon a petition in the circuit court of Linn County filed within fifteen (15) 
 days after the date of the city council’s decision. The appeal must be filed 
 in accordance with all applicable state laws and trial court procedures. 

 2.  Protests and Judicial Review of Special Procurements. An affected person may protest 
 the request for approval of a special procurement as provided in this section. 



 a.  Delivery; Late Protests. An affected person shall deliver a written protest to the 
 City Administrator/Recorder within seven (7) days after the first date of public 
 notice of a proposed special procurement, unless a different period is provided in 
 the public notice. 

 i.  The written protest shall include a fee in an amount established in a 
 schedule adopted by the City Administrator/Recorder to cover the costs of 
 processing the protest. 

 ii.  A protest submitted after the timeframe established under this subsection 
 is untimely and shall not be considered. 

 b.  Content of Protest. The written protest shall include: 
 i.  Identification of the requested special procurement; 

 ii.  A detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds for the protest; 
 iii.  Evidence or documentation supporting the grounds on which the protest is 

 based; 
 iv.  A description of the resulting harm to the affected person; and 
 v.  The relief requested. 

 c.  Additional Information. The City Administrator/Recorder may allow any person 
 to respond to the protest in any manner the City Administrator/Recorder deems 
 appropriate, by giving such persons written notice of the time and manner 
 whereby any response shall be delivered. 

 d.  City Response. The City Administrator/Recorder shall issue a written disposition 
 of the protest in a timely manner. 

 i.  If the City Administrator/Recorder upholds the protest, in whole or in part, 
 the City Administrator/Recorder may, in the City 
 Administrator/Recorder’s sole discretion, implement the protest in the 
 approval of the special procurement, deny the request for approval of the 
 special procurement, or revoke any approval of the special procurement. 

 ii.  If the City Administrator/Recorder upholds the protest, in whole or in part, 
 the city shall refund the fee required to be delivered with the protest. 

 e.  Judicial Review. An affected person may not seek judicial review of a denial of a 
 request for a special procurement. 

 i.  Before seeking judicial review of the approval of a special procurement, 
 an affected person shall exhaust all administrative remedies. 

 ii.  Judicial review shall be in accordance with ORS 279B.400. 
 3.  Protests and Judicial Review of Sole-Source Procurements. An affected person may 

 protest the determination that goods or services or a class of goods or services are 
 available from only one source as provided in this section. 

 a.  Delivery; Late Protests. An affected person shall deliver a written protest to the 
 City Administrator/Recorder within seven (7) days after the first date of public 
 notice of a proposed sole source procurement is placed on the city’s website, 
 unless a different period is provided in the public notice. 

 i.  The written protest shall include a fee in an amount established in a 
 schedule adopted by the City Administrator/Recorder to cover the costs of 
 processing the protest. 

 ii.  A protest submitted after the timeframe established under this subsection 
 is untimely and shall not be considered. 



 b.  Content of Protest. The written protest shall include: 
 i.  A detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds for the protest; 

 ii.  Evidence or documentation supporting the grounds on which the protest is 
 based; 

 iii.  A description of the resulting harm to the affected person; and 
 iv.  The relief requested. 

 c.  Additional Information. The City Administrator/Recorder may allow any person 
 to respond to the protest in any manner the City Administrator/Recorder deems 
 appropriate by giving such person written notice of the time and manner whereby 
 any response shall be delivered. 

 d.  City Administrator/Recorder Response. The City Administrator/Recorder shall 
 issue a written disposition of the protest in a timely manner. 

 i.  If the City Administrator/Recorder upholds the protest, in whole or in part, 
 the proposed sole-source contract shall not be awarded. 

 ii.  If the City Administrator/Recorder upholds the protest, in whole or in part, 
 the city shall refund the fee required to be delivered with the protest. 

 e.  Judicial Review. An affected person may not seek judicial review of an election 
 not to make a sole-source procurement. 

 i.  Before seeking judicial review of the approval of a sole-source 
 procurement, an affected person shall exhaust all administrative remedies. 

 ii.  Judicial review shall be in accordance with ORS 279B.400. 
 4.  Protests and Judicial Review of Personal Services Procurements. An affected person may 

 protest the procurement of a personal services contract as provided in this section. 
 a.  Delivery. Unless otherwise specified in the solicitation document, the protest shall 

 be in writing and delivered to the City Administrator/Recorder. 
 i.  The written protest shall include a fee in an amount established in a 

 schedule adopted by the City Administrator/Recorder to cover the costs of 
 processing the protest. 

 ii.  Protests of the procurement of a specific contract as a personal services 
 contract shall be made prior to closing. 

 iii.  Protests to the award or an intent to award a personal services contract 
 shall be made within seven (7) days after issuance of the intent to award, 
 or if no notice of intent to award is given, within forty-eight (48) hours 
 after award. 

 iv.  Protests submitted after the timeframe established under this subsection 
 are untimely and shall not be considered. 

 b.  Contents of Protest. The written protest shall: 
 i.  a. Specify all legal or factual grounds for the protest as follows: 

 1.  A person may protest the solicitation on the grounds that the 
 contract is not a personal services contract or was otherwise in 
 violation of this Ordinance or applicable law. The protest shall 
 identify the specific provision of this Ordinance or applicable law 
 that was violated. 

 2.  A person may protest award or intent to award for the reason that: 
 ●  All proposals ranked higher than the affected persons are 

 nonresponsive; 



 ●  The city failed to conduct the evaluation of proposals in 
 accordance with the criteria or processes described in the 
 solicitation document; 

 ●  The city abused its discretion in rejecting the affected 
 person’s proposal as nonresponsive; or 

 ●  The evaluation of proposals or the subsequent 
 determination of award is otherwise in violation of this 
 Ordinance or applicable law. 

 3.  The protest shall identify the specific provision of this Ordinance 
 or applicable law that was violated by the city’s evaluation or 
 award; 

 ii.  Include evidence or supporting documentation that supports the grounds 
 on which the protest is based; 

 iii.  A description of the resulting harm to the affected person; and 
 iv.  The relief requested. 

 c.  Additional Information. The City Administrator/Recorder may allow any person 
 to respond to the protest in any manner the City Administrator/Recorder deems 
 appropriate by giving such person written notice of the time and manner whereby 
 any response shall be delivered. 

 d.  City Administrator/Recorder Response. The City Administrator/Recorder shall 
 issue a written disposition of the protest in a timely manner. 

 i.  If the City Administrator/Recorder upholds the protest, in whole or in part, 
 the proposed personal services contract procurement shall be cancelled, or 
 the contract shall not be awarded, as the case may be. 

 ii.  If the City Administrator/Recorder upholds the protest, in whole or in part, 
 the city shall refund the fee required to be delivered with the protest. 

 e.  Judicial Review. Before seeking judicial review, an affected person shall exhaust 
 all administrative remedies. Judicial review shall be in accordance with ORS 
 279B.420. 

 5.  Protests of Cooperative Procurements. Protests of the cooperative procurement process, 
 contents of a solicitation document, or award may be filed with the city only if the city is 
 the administering agency and under the applicable procedure described herein. 

 Passed by the City Council this 16th day of November, 2023. 

 Approved by the Mayor this _____ day of November, 2023. 

 _____ Ayes _____ Nays 

 _____________________ 
 Mayor 

 _____________________ 
 City Administrator/Recorder 


